
A CHRONICLE OF 
CORONATION MALPAS

Malpas from 1952 to 1954 through reports and 
photographs from the ‘Chester Chronicle’ together 

with some additional archive material
(researched and written by David Hayns)



Images of the Chester Chronicle are stored on microfilm at the
Cheshire Record Office in Chester. These images are not of
sufficiently sharp quality to produce reasonable photographs so the
County Archivist kindly arranged for the original bound files of the
newspaper covering 1952, 1953 and 1954 to be brought up from the
Record Office’s out-store in a disused salt mine, deep underground
at Winsford. Here the environmental conditions are perfect for
document storage and the mine is used for this purpose by many
organisations. Thanks are due to Michael Green, who was the
Executive Editor of the Chester Chronicle at that time, for granting
permission for the photographs to be published. Thanks too for the
help received towards this presentation from Ian & Pauline
Lawrence and Mary Davis.



SOCIAL EVENTS



The Farming Community

Naturally in this agricultural area much of
the social activity in Malpas revolved
around the farming community. Many
farmers were also involved with fox-
hunting and belonged to the Wynnstay or
one of the other local hunts. The Malpas
Farmers’ Daughters Dance is something
that would be unlikely to happen today –
perhaps it was an opportunity for the
daughters to meet potential partners!











The annual Garden Parties/Fetes at Saint
Joseph’s College (The Beeches) in Tilston Road
were always very popular events. Coach
parties used to come to them from as far away
as Birkenhead (Saint Joseph’s was part of the
Roman Catholic Diocese of Shrewsbury, which
had its headquarters in Birkenhead). When
was the last time a Ladies’ Cockerel Race was
run in Malpas?!





These clippings from the Chronicle illustrate two
popular Malpas sporting activities. The tennis courts
were on the levelled section at the top of the
Recreation Ground in Tilston Road.



Many will remember Cynthia Hancock’s dancing school which was one 
of the many which have run, and continue to run in the Jubilee Hall.



Miss Ida Jones was the headteacher of Malpas
Infants’ School. At this time it was still a Church of
England school, completely independent of the
Malpas Alport School. The original school was
housed in the wing purpose-built in 1833 onto the
original 1745 Alport School in Tilston Road. In 1874
a new infants’ school (now the Alport School
annexe) was built and the original school became
the infant headteacher’s house. In 1960, following
the opening of Malpas County Secondary School
(now the Heber High School), the Infants’ School
finally merged with the Alport School to form the
Malpas Alport Endowed Primary School (5-11
years), as it still is today. Miss Jones was elected
President of the Chester and District Teachers
Federation in March 1952. In May 1955 she became
the first woman to be elected as a Malpas parish
councillor but sadly died two months later.



MARITAL MILESTONES



There are few local wedding photographs in the
Chronicle for 1952 & 1953. This may have been
because the newspaper did not generally send its
own photographers to weddings but maybe a
photographer could be paid for. This might explain
this photograph published in June 1952 where the
couple are both from better-off families. Miss
Helen Jacqueline Leche came from Stretton Hall
(near Tilston) and Mr Richard Buckmaster came
from London. Their wedding was in the Roman
Catholic Chapel which had been opened in 1950 at
St Joseph’s College (The Beeches) in Tilston Road.



There was always an interest in Golden (50th) Wedding
Anniversaries. The three couples shown here (left to right) are
Mr & Mrs Leonard Hewitt of Malpas High Street (September
1952), Mr & Mrs Charles Bickley of Wrexham Road (June 1953)
and Mr & Mrs Levi Edge (June 1953). Mr Edge was a retired
master tailor.



LOCAL GOVERNMENT



NOVEMBER 1952



CIVIL DEFENCE AND THE
WOMEN’S VOLUNTARY 

SERVICE



JOINT MALPAS AND 
TATTENHALL CIVIL 
DEFENCE EXERCISE  

MARCH 1953



DRAMA & MUSIC



The 1940s and 1950s were a ‘golden age’ for artistic and social
activities in Malpas. Those who participated and are still living
have fond memories of those days. The venues for these
activities were the Jubilee Hall, the Alport School, Saint Oswald’s
church, the Congregational and two Methodist churches/chapels,
and the Parish Hall. Of the last three in this list the Wesleyan
Methodist chapel has been demolished, the Primitive Methodist
chapel is now a private residence and the Parish Hall is no longer
available for public use.



There appear to have been two main factors which helped to hasten
the demise of this range of activities. Many residents had purchased
their first television sets in order to watch the broadcast of Queen
Elizabeth’s Coronation on June 2nd 1953. After that many became
rather addicted to watching the ‘box’ and possibly became more
reluctant to venture out in the evenings to take part in other
activities. The other factor appears to have been the need to repair
the floor of the main room upstairs in the Jubilee Hall, which had
become unsafe soon after the Coronation. From May 1954 the room
was closed while fund-raising was undertaken to pay for re-laying the
floor. The Parish Hall provided an alternative venue for plays,
concerts, etc., but was unable to offer facilities to match those of the
Jubilee Hall.



The Head Teacher of the Alport Boys’ School from 1938 until
1944 and then of the combined Alport girls’ and boys’ school
from 1944, until he retired in 1958, was the legendary Herbert
Yates. He was also organist and choirmaster at Saint Oswald’s
church. Mr Yates, an indefatigable organiser, and others such as
Jack Peberdy, Tom Mercer, rector Guy Hepher and verger Richard
Harrison, were responsible for many musical and dramatic
events in Malpas from the time of the second World War into
the 1950s.

L to R:  Richard Harrison – Tom Mercer - Herbert Yates with Alport
pupils on home made instruments - Reverend Guy Hepher



Rector Guy Hepher’s
Annual Productions



These pictures are from the Rector’s re-
writing of the classic pantomime
‘Cinderella’, produced over three nights
in the Jubilee Hall in January 1952. The
total audience was nearly 500.
Cinderella, shown centre, was played by
Margery Ball, one of the sisters of Jack
Ball who ran the greengrocer’s shop in
Church Street.



1953



These are are pages from the ‘Aerfen’
programme, reproduced with
acknowledgements from Bill Coffin’s
book ‘Back in Five Minutes’.



The following year the Jubilee Hall was
not available for the Rector’s
production. The only viable alternative
venue was the, now sadly redundant,
Parish Hall alongside the Rectory Drive.
Here the pantomime was ‘The Story of
Richard Whittington’, with the cast of
six as shown in the photo. The two
characters on the left were played by
the Probin brothers Jack and Bill, who
will be remembered by many. The play
was presented cabaret style, with
supper being served. The Parish Hall
was a conversion in 1949 of the former
Rectory stables. Below left is the hall
standing derelict today. Below right is
how the interior looked in 1949.



Malpas Evening Institute



John (‘Jack’) Peberdy

1952



Malpas Amateur Dramatic Society



ONE WILD OAT Two feuding neighbours, a

barrister and a bookmaker, join forces to try and

prevent their secret pasts from coming back to

haunt them.



HOBSON’S CHOICE Henry Hobson, a British widower, is the overbearing owner of

a shoe shop. His three daughters - Alice, Vicky and Maggie - work for him and all

are eager to get out from under his thumb. When the headstrong Maggie

announces she intends to marry Will, Henry's best employee, father and daughter

engage in an intense showdown. As Maggie works on launching a competing

business she also helps her sisters free themselves of their domineering father.

1952



THE MONKEY’S PAW is a based on a horror short story by

W W Jacobs. In the story, three wishes are granted to the

owner of The Monkey's Paw but the wishes come with an

enormous price for interfering with fate. MEET THE

FAMILY is a comedy of domestic life. It revolves around

the lives of the Singleton and Marsh families and their

staff, including a crooked butler!

1953



Malpas Amateur Theatre Club



WORM’S EYE VIEW is a play by R F

Delderfield. It is set in a family home

during World War II. Their bitter landlady

is not pleased by five fighters from the

Royal Air Force who are staying there and

she re-directs unjustly her frustrations

against the family.

1952



THE MAN FROM TORONTO is a

British romantic comedy. After an

inheritance is left to them if they

marry, an Englishwoman and a

Canadian must meet for the first

time to investigate the other - with

comedic results.

1953



The Alport School



During the 1950s the Headteacher of the Malpas Alport
Endowed School, which at the time of the Coronation was still
an ‘all-age’ school (pupils of 7-14 years of age), was Herbert
Yates. He was a very enterprising and imaginative teacher. One
of his great interests was the making of musical instruments
from a variety of unconventional materials. Groups of pupils
performing on these instruments gave many concerts and even
broadcast on BBC regional radio and television. The newspaper
cutting from the Daily Dispatch, which was a Manchester
newspaper, was kindly provided by Ian Lawrence.



1953



1953





FROM ACCESSION 
TO CORONATION



King George VI succeeded to the
throne on December 11th 1936. He
died from a coronary thrombosis on
February 6th 1952 and was
succeeded by his daughter, our
present Queen Elizabeth.



THE NEW QUEEN
ACCOMPANIED BY PRINCE
PHILIP VISITED NORTH
WALES IN JULY 1953



MALPAS AND THE CORONATION: The general feeling
that Malpas should do something on a big scale to
celebrate the Coronation was expressed at a meeting of
Malpas Parish Council on Tuesday, when it was decided
that the Council should take the lead, as they did in
1937, and call a public meeting, inviting representatives
of all local bodies to discuss what form the activities
should take (Chester Chronicle September 6th 1952).



MALPAS GOES AHEAD WITH PLANS FOR CORONATION: A
public meeting convened by Malpas Parish Council at the
Jubilee Hall on Thursday last week to consider Coronation
festivities in Malpas next year, made three decisions. It
was unanimously agreed that festivities should take place
in Malpas to commemorate the Coronation; that the
Parish Council should not be the controlling body; and
that a general controlling committee should only be
formed after it had been ascertained whether outlying
parishes were prepared to join in the Malpas proposals or
not (Chester Chronicle September 27th 1952).





COMMEMORATIVE CORONATION
MUGS OR BEAKERS WERE
PRESENTED TO SCHOOLCHILDREN
IN MOST COMMUNITIES ACROSS
THE COUNTRY. THIS SHOWS THE
DELIVERY NOTE FOR SAMPLES
SUPPLIED TO MALPAS
CORONATION FESTIVITIES
COMMITTEE AND THE ACTUAL
BEAKER PRESENTED TO IAN
LAWRENCE. HE WAS A PUPIL AT
THE MALPAS ALPORT SCHOOL.



It might seem surprising, in present times when local
newspapers include many photographs of local events (which
helps to boost their sales!), that there are so few pictures of
local Coronation celebrations in 1953. In those days most
photographs were taken by staff photographers employed by
the newspapers. They would not have been able to cover all of
the enormous number of Coronation celebration events – and
probably also wanted time off to take part in celebrations in
their own communities.



MALPAS – THE CARNIVAL: In glorious weather the Malpas
Carnival was held on Saturday, when the procession
formed up at Sunnyside, proceeded up Church Street and
High Street to St Joseph’s College, down Springfield
Avenue and up to the Rectory Lawn, where the Queen,
Miss Elsie Darlington, was crowned by Mrs Hepher, who
presented her with a souvenir necklace. The Queen’s train-
bearers were Wendy Cocker, Kathleen Evans, Trevor Gillott
and Fred Huxley, and her ladies-in-waiting were Thelma
Passey, Sheila Probin, Margaret Lloyd, Gillian Lightfoot,
Edna Darlington and Maureen Barlow. Sceptre bearer,
Tom Uttley, and Sword bearer Bobby Bradley. The Crown
bearer was Lawrence Pridding and the Herald Roy Wynne
(Chester Chronicle June 13th 1953).



CHESTER CHRONICLE JUNE 6TH 1953



TWO MEN WHO DID MUCH FOR MALPAS
DURING THEIR LIFETIMES WERE NORMAN
CRADDOCK (LEFT) AND JACK PEBERDY
(RIGHT). THEY WERE TREASURER AND
SECRETARY RESPECTIVELY OF THE MALPAS
CORONATION FESTIVITIES COMMITTEE. WE
ARE GRATEFUL TO THE FAMILIES OF BOTH OF
THEM FOR MAKING IT POSSIBLE FOR US TO
SEE THE RECORDS OF THE COMMITTEE. TWO
EXTRACTS FROM THOSE RECORDS ARE
SHOWN IN THE FINAL SLIDE.



THIS IS THE LAST PARAGRAPH OF THE FINAL REPORT TO THE 
CORONATION FESTIVITIES COMMITTEE IN SEPTEMBER 1953.

PERHAPS IT SAYS IT ALL!

FINAL ACCOUNTS OF THE 
CORONATION FESTIVITIES COMMITTEE


